RESTRICTED

WORLD TRADE IP/CIM/1

25 April 1995

ORGANIZATION

(95-0996)

Council for Trade-Related Aspects of Intellectual Property Rights

MINUTES OF MEETING

Held in the Centre William Rappard
on 9 March 1995

Chairman: Mr. S. Harbinson

Subj ects discussed:

A. Rules of procedure of the Council for TRIPS
B. Arrangements for cooperation with WIPO

C. Notification procedures

D. Organizational matters and work programme

E. Activities in other international fora relevant to the TRIPS Agreement

F. Other business

1 In opening the meeting, the Chairman noted that non-voting participants and government

observers to WTO bodies had been invited as agreed by the General Council at its meeting of
31 January 1995. In addition, WIPO had been invited in accordance with the recommendation made
to the Preparatory Committee and the General Council. Asprovided for indocument WT/GC/COM/2,
invitationsto thisfirst meeting had been extended to the United Nations, UNCTAD, IMF and theWorld
Bank. He noted that the Chairman of the General Council was holding consultations about more
permanent arrangements regarding observer status for relevant intergovernmental organizations. He
also noted that invitations to observers did not preclude the Council from holding meetings without
their presence if it should so wish.

A. Rules of Procedure of the Council for TRIPS

2. TheChairmanrecalledthat ArticlelV:5 of theWTO Agreement required the Council for TRIPS
to establishitsrules of procedure subject to the approval of the General Council. He proposed to hold
informal consultations on this matter and that, pending the results of those consultations, the business
of the Council be conducted on the basis of established GATT practice.

3. The Council so agreed.



IP/IC/IM/1

Page 2
B. Arrangements for Cooperation with WIPO
4, The Chairman drew attention to the report of the Contact Group on TRIPS as contained in

document PC/IPL/7 and Addenda 1 and 2. This report, which had been remitted to the Council for
TRIPS for further consideration and action as appropriate, included a staged programme of work on
the question of arrangements for cooperation with WIPO (PC/IPL/7, paragraph 6). He suggested that
the Council might consider first whether any further information was desirable for having an adequate
basis to consider this matter. The second point that could be addressed was the clarification of what
WTO Members wished to achieve on certain issues and of what forms of cooperation they might seek
with WIPO in the implementation of the TRIPS Agreement. It was for the TRIPS Council to come
to aview on these matters first, since the issue at this stage concerned the cooperation that might be
sought of WIPO in the implementation of the TRIPS Agreement. This would not be understood to
preclude exploring in consultations any contribution that the TRIPS Council could make to the work
of WIPO if WIPO should seek it; thiswould be consistent with the notion of a " mutually supportive
relationship”. Thethird point that heinvited del egations to address was how the consultations between
the two Organizations might best be organized. He also requested comments on the issue raised in
paragraph 8 of the Contact Group's report, namely the suggestion that the TRIPS Council should consider
whether WIPO should be invited to meetings of the Genera Council when matters of direct relevance
to it were under discussion. He first offered the floor to the observer from WIPO so that he could
update the Council on relevant activities of that Organization.

5. The representative of WIPO said that WIPO placed much emphasis on the policy of good relations
and close cooperation with the WTO in general and the Council for TRIPSin particular, and conveyed
the continued desire of the Director General of WIPO for a friendly, productive and cooperative
relationship between the two Organizations. The appropriate form and substance of the cooperation
between WIPO and the WTO had to be carefully examined and agreed, but steps to ensure the smooth
establishment of a mutually supportive relationship had been undertaken by the Secretariat and Governing
Bodies of WIPO. This showed the serious and active interest of the Member States of WIPO in the
establishment of acooper ativerelationship betweenthetwo Organizations. Emphasizing theimportance
in this respect of the Resolution adopted by the General Assembly of WIPO during its session held
from 26 September to 4 October 1994, taken up in the report of the Contact Group on TRIPS,
paragraphs 1 and 2 of which read as follows:

"1. Having noted that the Preamble of the Agreement on Trade-Related Aspects of
Intellectual Property Rights states that the Members of the World Trade Organization desire
to establish amutually supportive relationship between the World Trade Organization and the
World Intellectua Property Organization, the WIPO Genera Assembly hereby also expresses
thedesireto establishamutually supportiverd ationship betweentheWorld Intellectual Property
Organization and the World Trade Organization.

"2. In accordance with its desire to establish a mutually supportive relationship between
the World Intellectua Property Organization and the World Trade Organization, the WIPO
General Assembly decides to establish an ad hoc working group open to all Member States
of WIPO:

) to advise and cooperate with the Director Genera of WIPO in his contacts
with the competent organs of GATT/WTO;

(i) to discuss matters concerning possi bl e cooperation between WIPO and WTO;



IP/IC/M/1
Page 3

(ili)  to consider the establishment of an ad hoc informa WIPO/GATT-WTO
Consultation Group on al matters concerning possibl e cooperation between WIPO and
WTO."

6. Asto the steps dready taken towards cooperation between WIPO and the WTO, the representative
of WIPO saidthat theDirector General of WIPO had met several timeswith the Chairman of the Contact
Group on TRIPS of the Preparatory Committee for the WTO and discussed with him, inter alia, questions
of notifications under the TRIPS Agreement. In addition, certain informa meetings between staff
membersof theInternational Bureau of WIPO and the Secretariat of GATT had taken placein connection
with the work of the Contact Group, in particular to discuss the collections of laws maintained by the
International Bureau and notifications concerning matters other than the communication of laws and
regulations, which would have to be made under the TRIPS Agreement by Members of the WTO.
In this context, the International Bureau had also provided information in written form, on the
implementation of Article 6ter of the Paris Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property* and
had at thethird meeting of the Contact Group on 25 October 1995, towhich it had beenformally invited,
oraly responded to questions on WIPO's collections of intellectual property legislation.?

7. The representative of WIPO then referred to the first meeting that had taken place on
8 February 1995 of the ad hoc WIPO Warking Group on Cooperation Between WIPO and WTO, in
fulfilment of the mandate given by the WIPO Genera Assembly in its October 1994 Resolution.
Representatives of 79 States as well as of the WTO, the European Communities and the Organization
of African Unity had attended the meeting, chaired by the Permanent Representative of Kenya,
Ambassador Nanjira. Detailed discussions had led the Working Group to the adoption of thefollowing
conclusions:

"The Working Group invites the Director General of WIPO to submit to its next meeting
suggestions on matters for possible cooperation between WIPO and WTO and concerning the
question of the establishment of the ad hoc informa WIPO/WTO Consultation Group mentioned
in the October 1994 decision of the Genera Assembly of WIPO.

"It is understood that the establishment, if any, of the said Consultation Group can be decided
only by the competent governing bodies of WIPO and WTO."

8. Therepresentative of Tunisia, speaking on behalf of the African Members of theWTO, referred
to Article 68 of the TRIPS Agreement and said that the African countries attached great importance
to the establishment of an ad hoc informal WIPO/WTO Consultation Group as referred to by the
representative of WIPO, which they had also emphasized at the WIPO meeting of 8 February 1995.
Cooperation between thetwo Organi zations had to be encouraged in order to avoid duplication of efforts
and waste of resources. The African countries recognized that the Uruguay Round negotiations had
resulted in the most extensive package of trade agreements ever achieved in the history of GATT in
terms of scope, complexity and impact on theinternational trading environment as well as on national
policies and that they were now more than ever called upon to adapt to the higher level of multilateral
disciplinesin this new environment. They aso had to identify, and take advantage of, the possibilities
that the new trading system offered, and were aware of the implications of the TRIPS Agreement,
of its impact on the world economy and of the need to adapt to the new environment resulting from
its entry into force. In this respect, he noted that the African Ministers of Trade had met in Tunis
in October 1994 and examined the results of the Uruguay Round negotiations and their consequences

*Annex 3 of document PC/IPL/7/Add.2.

°Reflected in Annex 3 of document PC/IPL/7.



IP/CIM/1
Page 4

for the African economies. The Ministers had expressed the need for technica assistance in order
to facilitate the implementation of the various agreements which together formed the results of the
Uruguay Round and had requested the competent international organizationsand agencies, in particul ar
the WTO, to draw up programmes and policies in order to take up the challenge arising from the
implementation of the Marrakesh Agreement. Tunisia had been entrusted with the coordination and
the follow-up of technical assistance programmes with the WTO and other international organizations
involved in international trade.

9. Continuing, the representative of Tunisia said that the African countries were aware of the
need for harmonization of national legislation and itsadaptati on to thenew requirements, and tofacilitate
thenotification of thislegislation andto ensurethetransparency required through the TRIPS Agreement.
However, their young national administrations were not always equipped to achieve what was asked
of theminthisrespect. Therefore, duplication of effortsand unnecessary overlapping shouldbeavoided.
In their view, the establishment of an ad hoc informal group on, and the drawing up of an arrangement
for, cooperation between the WTO and WIPO could only facilitate the attainment of these objectives.
In the meantime, and without prejudice to the outcome of consultati ons between the two Organizations,
two realistic areas for cooperation could be mentioned, namely the notification of nationa laws and
regulations and technical cooperation. He also emphasized that technical assistance activities should
not be limited to lega advice, but should also extend to the establishment of administrative
infrastructures, the enhancement of human resources and the consolidation of national structures so
that required functions could be fulfilled in the best possible way. The African countries attached the
highest priority to theseissues. In conclusion, he wished to reaffirm their commitment to a continued
activeparticipation in thework of the Council for TRIPSin order to promote consensus on these matters
of major interest to all.

10. The representatives of Egypt, Kenya and Morocco supported Tunisia' s statement.

11. Therepresentative of Koreaemphasized the need for arrangements based on amutudly supportive
partnership of the WTO and WIPO, in order to avoid any duplication of efforts or unnecessary extra
burdens on Members. In addition to the areas aready identified by the Contact Group, he referred
to geographical indications as an areawhere cooperative arrangements between the two Organizations
might be considered. While under the TRIPS Agreement negotiations should take place on the
establishment of amultilateral system for theregistration of geographical indicationsfor wines, WIPO
already had gained experience in this respect through the operation of the Lisbon Agreement for the
Protection of Appellationsof Originand their Internationa Registration. The WTO could, ontheother
hand, give useful input to WIPO in respect of the system for the settlement of disputes between states
that was being negotiated under itsauspices. He expressed support for the establishment of aninformal
joint body by theWTO and WIPO for further consultations on matters concerning possi bl e cooperation.
His delegation also believed that WIPO should be invited to meetings of the General Council as long
as matters of direct relevance to WIPO were under discussion but was of the opinion that this issue
had to be considered in a broader perspective in the Genera Council itself.

12. Elaborating on the three possible areas of cooperation identified in document PC/IPL/7/Add. 2,
the representative of Egypt believed that it was still premature to seek any kind of agreed cooperation
between the WTO and WIPO in the areas of technical assistance and dispute settlement and that the
priority for close cooperation lay in the area of notification procedures. She noted that the type of
technical assistancethat could be expected from the WT O Secretariat had not yet been defined, bearing
in mind its modest capacity in terms of manpower and finance. Of course, advice and assistance could
be sought from the International Bureau of WIPO, since such was the prerogative of each country.
Only one provision of the TRIPS Agreement, Article 67, referred to theissue of technical cooperation,
addressing solely the obligations of developed country Members. However, her delegation would
welcome an exchange of views and ideas between the Secretariats of the WTO and of the WIPO on



IP/IC/M/1
Page 5

an informal basis concerning the interpretation of some of the provisions of the TRIPS Agreement.
In the area of dispute settlement, seeking information and technical advice from WIPO was the
prerogative of panelists, arbitrators, Appellate Body members, as well as the parties to any dispute.
There was no urgency for designing the modalities of any type of cooperation between WIPO and the
WTO in this respect, since the dispute settlement mechanism would not become really operationa in
respect of the TRIPS Agreement until January 1996. Moreover, theoutcome of theforthcoming meeting
of the WIPO Committee of Experts on the Settlement of Disputes Between States had to be awaited.
Astotheareaof priority where close cooperation should be worked out between the WTO and WIPO -
notification requirements - the genera rule should be to avoid the notification of measures and laws
which had already been the subject of notificationsin other fora. Such avoidance of double notifications
would certainly lessen the burden on Member Statesaswell as on the Secretariats. 1t would also ensure
clearer efficiency inthegathering of informationand itsdissemination; fragmented distribution usually
led to uncertainty and confusion. As regards the staged programme of work which the Contact Group
had established with aview to devel oping appropriate arrangements for cooperation between the WTO
and WIPQ, it was certainly true that the Members of the WTO, being the initiators behind the search
for cooperation with the International Bureau of WIPO, were entitled, in the framework of the TRIPS
Council, to take the time necessary to formulate first and in concrete terms the forms of cooperation
they would deem most appropriate and adequate. To that end, the Council was given one full year.
Nevertheless, her delegation believed that there were many urgent questions which the TRIPS Council
had to address at this time and which needed to be dealt with jointly with WIPO. In addition, it would
seem difficult for one body to decide unilateraly on issues which fell within the purview of another
body. To this end and in accordance with the desire to establish a mutually supportive relationship
between the Organizations, ajoint ad hoc informal working group should be established, in order to
fecilitate achieving the objective of developing appropriate arrangements for cooperation. Her delegation
would not suggest that such aworking group beinstitutionalized, but only be established for the purpose
of servicing stages two and three of the staged programme of work agreed in the Contact Group, i.e.
the consideration of forms of cooperation and of how consultations between the two Organizations
had best be conducted. Such a working group was not an end in itself, but a means of developing
the desired appropriate arrangements for cooperation.

13. Therepresentative of Kenyasaid that Africaattached great importanceto the question of TRIPS
and that it was for this reason that the African Ministers of Trade had taken last October a politica
decision on thismatter aspart of their implementation of the Uruguay Round. Referring to thestatement
of therepresentativeof WIPO, hesaidthat it was gratifying to notethewillingnessof WIPOto cooperate
closely with the WTO. When the ad hoc WIPO Working Group had met on 8 February 1995 last
under his chairmanship, arepresentative of WTO had dso made a statement on behdf of his Organization
which had aso been very helpful. Hewastherefore persuaded that therewould befruitful cooperation.
After all, generally speaking, the WIPO and WTO served the same continents and states. While he
was quite clear asto where WIPO stood on cooperation, he hoped to learn more about the modalities
for cooperation as perceived by WTO Members.

14. Therepresentative of Chile, addressing theissueof possible cooperation inthe areaof technica
assistance, suggested that the Secretariat make an inventory of the existing supply of and demand for
technical assistance, thus helping the Council to organize a "market" in the area of such technical
assistance. Thiswould facilitate the identification of where technical assistance was lacking and the
modalities that needed to be worked out. The guiding principle for decisions to provide technica
assistance should be which Organization was the most apt in providing the assistance needed. No
institution should have a monopoly in providing technical assistance but have its appropriate share as
determined by market forces. Asto the issue of cooperation with WIPO, his delegation believed that
this should be looked at in greater detail with the Secretariat of WIPO, focusing on which forms of
cooperation would beto mutual benefit. Theareaof primeurgency inthisrespect wasthat of notification
procedures, where technical assistance was needed to enable all countries to make notifications as



IP/IC/M/1
Page 6

promptly as possible. He concluded by emphasizing that WIPO and the WTO should be enabled to
operate in a complementary fashion so as to ensure a beneficia alocation of resources.

15. The representative of Paraguay pointed to complementarity as a guiding principle in trying
to find the most practical and efficient form of cooperation between the two Organizations and their
Secretariats. In this context, an informal joint working group might be considered sooner or later.
Such agroup could be a helpful means for achieving certain results, in particular in the area of prime
urgency, notification procedures, since with the help of WIPO's infrastructure and experience duplication
of efforts could be avoided. Also in the area of technica assistance the need for a cooperative
relationship with WIPO was obvious. WIPO had been offering technical assistance for some years
already and a system of mutual support between the two Organizations should be considered, aimed
at adapting WIPO's present system of technical cooperation to countries needs in respect of the
implementation of the TRIPS Agreement. Thus, countrieswould be enabled to meet their obligations
a the appropriate time.

16. The representative of Uruguay, stressing the importance of an excellent cooperation between
the WTO and WIPO, said that the notifications in the WTO under the TRIPS Agreement could not
be dissociated from the notifications made under the conventions administered by WIPO. Asto the
issue of technical assistance, she subscribed to the views expressed by Paraguay. WIPO should aso
identify, fromits side, areas in which the two Organizations should cooperate. Finally, she expressed
support for the creation of an ad hoc informal joint consultation body which should be monitored by
both Organizations, on the understanding that cooperation should be a matter not only for the two
Secretariats but also for the member countries of the two Organizations.

17. Therepresentativeof Morocco said that, when di scussing the basi ¢ question of what cooperation
should be sought, thefocus should be on notificationsand technical cooperation. Asto how cooperation
could best be organized, his delegation supported the proposa of the African countries for the
establishment of an ad hoc informal WIPO/WTO Consultation Group jointly organized by WIPO and
the WTO.

18. Therepresentative of the Philippines, speaking on behalf of the ASEAN countries, emphasized
the need for close and mutually supportive cooperation between the WTO and WIPO, both being
Organizations of which ASEAN countries were members. He welcomed the presence at the meeting
of arepresentative of WIPO and said that it would be indispensabl e that the two Organizations would
be invited as observers to each other's meetings. Accordingly, WIPO should not only be invited to
meetings of the TRIPS Council but also to that of other WTO bodies, including the Genera Council
and the Ministerial Conference, in so far as these would deal with intellectual property matters. The
WTO should beinvited to meetings of the Governing Bodies of WIPO. GATT had aways been invited
to meetings of Committees of Expertsand similar meetingsin WIPO and the ASEAN countries would
expect this continued in respect of theWTO. Hethen expressed the hope that the cooperation between
the two Organizations would enable the avoidance of duplication of efforts and resources, a matter
on which ASEAN took aperennial stand. This might be achieved by setting up mechanisms, whether
administrative or financial in nature, which would enable WTO Membersto draw on WIPO' sexpertise
and facilities, wherever and whenever possible. For example, systemsfor the notification of nationa
legislation and matters such as those related to Article 6ter of the Paris Convention as had to be
considered by the TRIPS Council could be established on the basis of WIPO's existing arrangements.
Furthermore, as regards legal and technical assistance to developing countries, full account should
be taken of WIPO's extensive experience, expertise and indispensable non-partisan approach. In
conclusion, he said that the ASEAN countries were of the view that the meeting of the ad hoc WIPO
Working Group on Cooperation between WIPO and WTO on 8 February 1995 had been fruitful and
had put the process towards cooperation between the two Organizations in the right direction.



IPIC/IM/1
Page 7

19. The representative of Switzerland said that cooperation between the WTO and WIPO was
indispensable and desired by both Organizations. He noted that preliminary and exploratory work
had already started between the two Secretariatsin thisrespect, which was useful for the establishment,
eventualy, of real and effective cooperation. Consideration of the matter by the Council should take
place in three phases. Thefirst concerned the identification of the needs of the Members of the WTO
that had to be met in order to ensure an appropriate implementation of the Agreement. He suggested
that the Chairman hold informa consultations to enable Members to express their views as to what
they believed was needed to ensure an appropriate implementation of the Agreement and what they
believed should bethe priorities. The second phase should be the identification, by means of informal
contactsthrough aready-established channel's, of what WIPQO could, or would wishto, supply inanswer
to these identified needs. In the third phase it would be up to the TRIPS Council to assess the
possibilities for cooperation and determine a framework within which cooperation with WIPO would
be finally established. Asto WIPO's attendance at meetings of the General Council, he preferred to
await the outcome of the on-going consultations on observer status in the General Council.

20. Therepresentative of the United States agreed with the delegation of Switzerland that the most
important issuefor the TRIPS Council in itsearly days of operation was to decide what its needs were.
In that respect, the question of notification procedures was of primary importance. As others had
mentioned, technical assistance was an important issue as well. The notification requirements under
the Agreement could be very substantial and, while some discussion on this had already taken place
in the Contact Group, more discussion was necessary. Before determining WIPO's possible réle in
this respect, the TRIPS Council first had to take some basic decisions on the content of notification
requirements.

21. The representative of Japan said that the contacts between the Secretariats of the WTO and
WIPO had already identified some specific issues which required some cooperation, such asin respect
of notifications. Based on these findings, the TRIPS Council should first give substance to the phrase
"mutually supportive relationship”, since agreement on this, for example on details of notification
requirements, would facilitate considerably both the elaboration of an institutional framework and
the contacts on various levels between the WTO and WIPO and their Secretariats.

22. The representative of the European Communities doubted that there had been concrete ideas
in the minds of the TRIPS negotiators as to what could or should be the subject matter of "appropriate
arrangements for cooperation with WIPO" asreferred to in Article 68 of the Agreement. It was now
up to the TRIPS Council to definewhat was meant by this; theprime, if not theexclusive, responsibility
for doing so rested with the TRIPS Council. Asfar asthe substance of that cooperation was concerned,
an important, perhaps prime, candidate for further discussion and ducidation was the issue of notification
requirements. Othershad asoreferredto technical assistanceasan areaof possiblecooperation between
the WTO and WIPO. Hisdelegation would also like to have adiscussion on that issuein further detail,
if for no other reason than that it was essentia that, when technical assistance was provided - be it
by WIPQ or other international organizations- and covered mattersarising under the TRIPS Agreement,
such technical assistance would be provided in a manner which was consonant with the way in which
the TRIPS provisions should be interpreted. In that context the only source could be, apart from the
collective wisdom of the TRIPS Council, the WTO Secretariat. When considering the question of
cooperation with WIPO, substance should precede procedure. Over thenext severa months, the TRIPS
Council should first seek a sufficient degree of consensus on the substance of possible cooperation
between the WTO and WIPO. Thereafter, the question had to be addressed of how such possible
cooperation be best discussed with WIPO. His delegation was not convinced that the establishment
of joint working parties, working groups or the like would necessarily be the best possible way of
approaching these questions at this stage, athough he did not necessarily exclude such possibilities
later.




IP/IC/M/1
Page 8

23. The representative of Canada said that in trying to ensure a constructive and cooperative
relationship between the WTO and WIPO, the cart should not be put before the horse. It would be
premature to discuss institutiona arrangements, whether formal or informal, between the WTO and
WIPO before the substantive questions had been dealt with as identified and referred to by previous
speakers. Firsttheactivitiesto be undertaken had to be determined aswell asthe appropriate procedures
for pursuing these activities. In tackling the questions of substance, the TRIPS Council had to take
an efficient and practical approach and should, therefore, first discuss the issue of notification
requirements. Another important area at this stage was technical cooperation. On the issue of
notifications, the first order of business should be to reach consensus on what was really required in
the relevant provisions of the TRIPS Agreement and what was the most sensible approach in meeting
theserequirements. Undoubtedly, thiswouldinvolveconsideration of whether existing WIPO facilities
could be used in thisrespect. Of course, the WTO was not in aposition to determine unilaterally what
roleWIPO might play. Optionshad tobediscussed with WIPO and, at theappropriatestage, appropriate
channels of communication had to be established. Informal channels of cooperation were aready
operative in a constructive way and should certainly continue, as the TRIPS Council might build on
this cooperation when any arrangements needed to be formalized.

24, In concluding the agenda item, the Chairman first noted that the discussion had reaffirmed
the desire of WTO Membersfor aclose, cooperative and mutually supportive relationship with WIPO.
As to the question of WIPO's attendance at meetings of the Genera Council, he would convey to the
Chairman of the Genera Council arecommendation that this matter be included in the consultations
the Chairman of the General Council was holding on theissue of observer statusfor intergovernmental
organizations. The discussion on the substance of cooperation with WIPO and how such cooperation
might best be organized had revealed some points of convergence but also some points of divergence
and no definite conclusion would seem to be within reach at the present time. Therefore, he proposed
to hold informal consultations on these questions.

25. The Council so agreed.

C. Notification Procedures

26. The Council took up first the general question of notification procedures and then the question
of notifications in respect of legislation to give effect to obligations already applicable.

Q) General notification procedures

) Article 63.2 concerning the notification of laws and regulations

27. The Charman drew attention to the information contained in Section 111 of document
PC/IPL/7/Add.2 and in Annex 3 of document PC/IPL/7 itself. Asin other rule-based agreements,
both under the GATT inthe past and under the WTO, the efficient functioning of the procedureprovided
for in Article63.2 for the notification of lawsand regul ationswould be acritical element in determining
the effectiveness of the Council in carrying out its tasks. In thisregard, the main question before the
Council was how the Council, while preserving the essential function which this type of notification
procedure was expected to perform in the GATT/WTO context, could maximize cooperation and
minimize duplication with WIPO.

28. Therepresentativeof Japan said that notificationswerethekey to transparency and theoperation
of the system as awhole. However, the provisions on notification in the TRIPS Agreement were not
necessarily very detailed and clear. Several aspectsof the notification proceduresneeded to beclarified,
such astiming, format and language of notifications. In other areas of the WTO Agreement detailed



IP/IC/M/1
Page 9

discussions had already taken place and notification formats had been designed. He proposed that the
Chairman hold informal consultations on this matter.

29. The representative of the United States emphasi zed the considerable extent of the undertaking
flowing from the requirement to notify laws and regulations for al countries, in particular for those
with more advanced intellectua property systems, and considered that the devel opment of amechanism
for such notifications under Article 63.2 was an urgent matter. In this connection, he noted that an
examination of the notification formats established in other areas of the WTO with respect to the
notification of legislation might provide guidance to the Council. He suggested that the Secretariat
prepare a note containing a compilation of the various arrangements made in the WTO for the notification
of legislation and that the Secretariat and/or the Chairman develop suggestions for a format for
notification of legislation under the TRIPS Agreement.

30. The representative of Switzerland stressed that it was of fundamenta importance that the Council
addressed the notification proceduresunder the Agreement. It wasnecessary for the Council to establish
prioritiesin considering these various notification procedures. Some of the notification requirements
could be dealt with at alater stage, but others had to be addressed urgently, in particular those which
defined the beneficiariesunder the Agreement or whichrelated to laws and regul ationsthat were al ready
in force. The reason for giving these matters priority lay in the fact that the very existence of rights
was involved in the notifications in question, i.e. whether or not rights had been introduced in the
Member in question in accordance with the Agreement or which options a Member had chosen for
the determination of beneficiaries. Some of the notification requirements also concerned the work
of other international organizations. Inthisregard, aquestion of cooperation arosein relation to WIPO
because of its collections of existing lawsand regulations. Having said this, it should be bornein mind,
however, that these collections had not been established on a basis which could serve TRIPS purposes
without further ado. Thenotification of lawsand regulationsunder the TRIPS Agreement had afunction
in the prevention of disputes through the monitoring of the operation of the Agreement and the review
of Members' laws. In WIPO, the function was only to provide information on Members laws. The
publication of textsby WIPO would not seem to be satisfactory asaworking instrument for the purposes
of the TRIPS Agreement. In light of these differences, he considered that notifications of laws and
regul ations should be submitted officially to the Council for TRIPS. Thiswould not prevent the Council
from subsequently making some arrangements with WIPO on technical and mechanica matters concerning
thecollection of theselawsand regulations. 1t wasboth essentia and possibleto establishaclear division
of responsibilities taking into account the distinct competences and needs of both organizations.

31. Therepresentative of Paraguay said that all intellectual property laws and regulationsin force
in his country could aready be found in the WIPO collections. Although he did not disagree with
the view expressed by therepresentative of Switzerland regarding thedifferent purposesof notifications
in the WTO and the WIPO, the key issue before the Council was the use that could be made of
notifications dready available in WIPO. He noted that soon documentation could be expected to be
produced by the International Bureau of WIPO on possible areas of cooperation between the two
Organizations. He suggested that the Chairman hold consultations with a view to determining what
contribution could be made by WIPO.

32. The representative of the European Communities said that the views of his delegation were
similar to those expressed by the representative of Switzerland. The Council first had to agree on a
number of details concerning the interpretation of the transparency and notification requirements in
Article63. Thetext of Article 63 aready provided asubstantial amount of guidanceand only relatively
little needed to be done in addition to the preparatory work prior to the first meeting of the Council.
Nevertheless, some important questions still had to be addressed as identified in PC/IPL/7/Add.2,
including the question of languages. He believed that it was essential that the basic and quite ambitious
notification requirement contained in Article 63 be implemented in a sufficiently practical and rapid




IP/IC/M/1
Page 10

fashionasto makethispart of the Agreement operational. He suggested that the Chairman hold informal
consultationson the nutsand boltswhich still had tobediscussed. Only after completion of that technical
work could the question be addressed of how the implementation should be carried out and whether
such could be done by the WTO or whether it could or should be done in cooperation with WIPO.
In that context, he said that his delegation had a predisposition in favour of a cooperative relationship
between the WTO and WIPO on this matter. However, the cart should not be put before the horse
and the Council should first clarify the substance of the notification requirements before the extent
of cooperation that would be practical could be identified.

33. The representative of Korea said that most obligations under the Agreement would not apply
until 1 January 1996 at the earliest, so that there was sufficient timeto consider the various notification
issues in combination with the issue of cooperation with WIPO. The issue of the implementation of
the notification requirement contained in Article 63.2 was closely related to the question of cooperation
withWIPO. Henoted that therewere apparent differences between thenotification proceduresin WIPO
and the notification procedures provided for in the TRIPS Agreement. Whilethe WIPO system placed
emphasis on the provision of a database for on-going reference, the purpose of the notification system
under the TRIPS Agreement was to facilitate the monitoring of the implementation of its provisions.
Consequently, aharmonized system or common register needed to be devel oped for the collection and
handling of data in the most effective manner. His delegation hoped that a cooperative mechanism
between the WTO and WIPO, if established, would pursue this matter as a priority issue. He also
supported the suggestion for further informal consultations on the matter.

34. The representative of India supported holding informal consultations.

35. In thelight of the discussion, the Chairman suggested that the Secretariat be requested to make
a compilation of how similar notification requirements regarding the notification of legislation were
being handled in other WTO bodies. He aso proposed that the Council revert at a later stage to the
guestion of the implementation of the notification requirement of Article 63.2 and that he would hold
informal consultations on this matter in the meantime.

36. The Council so agreed.

(i)  Article 4(d)

37. The Chairman recalled that, if a Member sought to justify an exception to the m.f.n. rule on
the basis of an international agreement relating to the protection of intellectual property which had
entered into force prior to the entry into force of the WTO Agreement, Article 4(d) required that such
an agreement be notified to the Council for TRIPS. The first part of paragraph 12 of
document PC/IPL/7/Add.2 raised one or two questions related to this provision.

38. Astherewere no statements made on thisissue, the Chairman proposed that the Council revert
to Article 4(d) at alater stage and that informal consultations be held on this matter in the meantime.

39. The Council so agreed.
(iii)  Article 69
40. The Chairman recalled that Article 69 required the notification of contact points established

in the administrations of Members with a view to cooperation in the elimination of trade ininfringing
goods, notably through the exchange of information.



IP/IC/M/1
Page 11

41. The representative of Switzerland wondered whether these contact points necessarily had to
be established in customs administrations,; focusing on theréle of contact pointsin relation to cooperation
in the elimination of trade in infringing goods appeared to suggest this. His delegation, however, was
of the view that contact points were, above al, points where information could be obtained, which
existed on a national level for all questions relating to TRIPS.

42. In response, the representative of the Secretariat said that the intention had not been to limit
the concept of contact points so as to necessarily relate only to customs administrations.  Thiswould
be for the Council to decide. However, the words "For this purpose” at the beginning of the second
sentence of Article 69, which laid down the obligation to establish contact points, made it clear that
therewas alink between that sentence and thefirst sentence of Article 69, which addressed the general
guestion of cooperation between Members with a view to eliminating trade in infringing goods.

43. The Chairman proposed to hold informal consultations on procedures for implementing the
provisions of Article 69.

44, The representative of India said that the wording of Article 69 was clear. His delegation had
no problem with the Chairman's proposal, provided that the consultations would be within the broad
scope of Article 69.

45, The Council agreed that the Chairman would hold informal consultations and that it would
revert to the matter at alater stage.

(iv) Articles1.3 and 3.1

46. The Chairman recalled that Articles 1.3 and 3.1 of the TRIPS Agreement relating to the definition
of beneficiary persons under the Agreement and to nationa treatment allowed certain exceptions to
the normal rules, provided that notifications were made to the TRIPS Council. Variousissuesin this
connectionwerediscussedin paragraphs 13-17 of document PC/IPL/7/Add.2. 1t wouldseemimportant
that any proceduresfor giving effect to these notification requirements be developed with aslittle delay
as possible since Members wishing those notifications that stem from provisions of the Rome Convention
tobeeffectivefrom 1 January 1996 should makethem beforethemiddleof 1995. Heinvited del egations
to address in particular the question raised in paragraph 14 of document PC/IPL/7/Add.2 concerning
possible procedures for handling this matter.

47. The Chairman asked whether it would be acceptabl e to proceed so that WTO Members would
beinvited to makeany notificationsthey wished to makeunder these provisions by theend of June 1995.
To facilitate such notifications and to forestall any unintended differences between notifications under
the TRIPS Agreement on the one hand and the Berne and the Rome Conventions on the other, the
Secretariat would be requested to compile, with the assistance of WIPO and the United Nations L egal
Office, acomplete listing of the notifications already made under the relevant provisions of the Berne
Convention or the Rome Convention and to circulate that compilation to the TRIPS Council. It would
be understood that these arrangements would be without prejudice to the right of a Member to make
notifications at a later date if it so wished.

48. The representetive of Argentina believed that it would be most appropriate to have this document
provided by the Secretariat. His delegation supported the proposal in the first indent of paragraph 14
of PC/IPL/7/Add.2, i.e. that notifications already made under the Berne Convention and the Rome
Convention should be considered aso to have been made for TRIPS purposes unless there was an
indication to the contrary by the state concerned.



IP/IC/M/1
Page 12

49, The representative of Mexico shared the views expressed by the representative of Argentina.

50. The representative of the Secretariat recalled that in paragraph 14 of PC/IPL/7/Add.2 dternative
procedures for possible decision by the TRIPS Council had been suggested. The first provided that,
in the absence of any action on the part of a Member who had aready made notifications under the
Berne Convention or theRome Convention, itsexisting notificationsin those contextswoul d beassumed
to be valid aso under the TRIPS Agreement on the basis of a decision from the Council for TRIPS
that would give legd status to those notifications under the TRIPS Agreement. The second approach
would require each Member to confirm an earlier notification or to notify something different. Under
this approach, passivity or failure to do something would mean that no notification had been effected
under the TRIPS Agreement. On reflection, it seemed that this more active approach might be
preferable. One problem with the first approach was that if a Member took no action, there could be
room for doubt as to whether the absence of action was due to the matter having been overlooked or
dueto adeliberate policy decision. Also, the obligationsin the TRIPS Agreement on "related rights"
weresomewhat different from thoseunder the Rome Convention. Thereforeit did not necessarily follow
that a country which had made certain notifications under the Rome Convention would want to make
the same notifications in the TRIPS context.

51. The representative of Paraguay said that while he sympathized with the position expressed by
therepresentative of Argentina, the points made by the Secretariat indicated that the matter still required
further reflection and that one had to be fairly cautious.

52. The representative of Hong Kong emphasized the importance of Articles 1.3 and 3.1 as they
had a direct relation to the scope of obligations. He shared the caution expressed by the Secretariat
and the representative of Paraguay. He suggested that, after examining the compilation proposed by
the Chairman, agreement might be reached on something that would not require completely new
notifications. He proposed that the matter be included in the informal consultations.

53. The representative of the European Communities agreed with the comments made by Hong
Kong. Asthe obligations under the TRIPS Agreement and the Rome Convention were not identical
it would be appropriate that governments, including those he represented, would reflect upon the
reservationsthat they had found necessary with respect to the Rome Convention. It was also important
that the respective rights and obligations of the Memberswere known precisely. Confusion would arise
from asituation where some Members would not notify their reservations under the Rome Convention
asthey would consider them to bevalid under the TRIPS Agreement, while otherswould confirm their
earlier notifications or notify something else. He was in favour of all Members notifying reservations
they wished to maintain.

54, TheChairman proposed that the Secretariat compile, with theassi stance of WIPO and the United
Nations L egal Office, acompletelisting of the notifications already made under the relevant provisions
of the Berne Convention and the Rome Convention and that the Council revert at alater stage to the
exact course of action to be taken with regard to the notification requirements of Articles 1.3 and 3.1.
In the meantime, he would hold informa consultations.

55. The Council so agreed.

(V) Article 63.2 concerning notifications pursuant to TRIPS obligations
stemming from the provisions of Article 6ter of the Paris Convention

56. Referring to paragraphs 18-21 of document PC/IPL/7/Add.2, the Chairman introduced the
agenda item by asking whether the TRIPS Council would wish to seek the cooperation of the International
Bureau of WIPO to handle on its behaf the notifications pursuant to these obligations.



IP/IC/M/1
Page 13

57. The representative of the United States said that there was a role to be played by WIPO in
this context, given the existing collection of notifications made under Article 6ter by member states
of the Paris Convention, including the reactions to those notifications that had been made by other
member states. However, the problem remained that the provisions of Article 6ter would be extended
under the TRIPS Agreement to other countries that were not members of the Paris Convention. Any
action under Article 6ter by WTO Membersin thelatter category could not simply beleft to the WIPO
alone.

58. The Chairman proposed that this question also be the subject of informa consultations and
be reverted to at a later stage.

59. The Council so agreed.

(vi) Other natification requirements

60. The Chairman drew attention to paragraphs 7-9 of document PC/IPL/7/Add.1 which listed
anumber of notification requirements under provisions of other intellectua property conventions that
were incorporated by reference into the TRIPS Agreement but not explicitly referred to in it. He
suggested that the Council leave these provisions aside for the time being.

61. The Council so agreed.

2 Notification of legislation giving effect to obligations already applicable

62. The Chairman recalled that the Contact Group had agreed that under Article 63.2 nationa laws
and regulations should be notified promptly as of the timethat the corresponding substantive obligation
applied and that national laws and regulations implementing the provisions of Article 70.8 should
consequently be notified as of the date of entry into force of the WTO Agreement. As of today,
notificationshad beenreceived from Indiaand Brazil in documents IP/N/1/IND/1 and IP/N/1/BRA/1,
respectively.

63. In introducing document IP/N/1/IND/1, the representative of India said that, through the
Presidential Ordinance of 31 December 1994 reproduced in that document, Indiahad met itsobligations
under paragraphs 8 and 9 of Article 70 of the TRIPS Agreement.

64. The representative of Brazil introduced document IP/N/1/BRA/1 and said that it had not been
necessary to passanew law to enabl e patent applicationsto befiled under Article 70.8, sincethe current
law did not forbid the Brazilian Nationa Institute of Industrial Property from receiving such patent
applications. Consequently, implementation of the provision in question had been possible by the
administrative measure passed by the President of the Brazilian Nationa Institute of Industrial Property
described in the notification.

65. Therepresentative of the European Communities said that therewere threetypes of legislative
and related actions taken by Members which were relevant as of 1 January 1995 and which should
therefore be subject to rapid notification to the TRIPS Council. First, Article 65.5 contained an
obligation to ensure that any changes in laws, regulations and practice made during the transitional
period did not result in alesser degree of consistency with the provisions of the TRIPS Agreement.
His delegation deduced from this obligation that, in order to alow Members to monitor compliance
with this obligation as of 1 January 1995, any subsequent changes in domestic law relevant to the
TRIPS Agreement should be notified. Second, he mentioned national legidation enacted for the purpose
of ensuring conformity with theprovisionsof the TRIPS Agreement. Although no Member wasobliged
tosubmit for circulation such modificationsof their national legislation beforeitscorresponding TRIPS




IP/IC/M/1
Page 14

obligation came into force, he believed that it would be very useful if Members, nevertheless, were
to do so; his delegation would do so shortly. Third, he mentioned the obligations arising from
Article 70.8. He welcomed the notifications made by Brazil and India but noted with concern that
quite a number of other Members who should have enacted national legislation or measuresin order
to implement Article 70.8 either had not done so or had not submitted notifications.

66. The representative of the United States agreed with most of the points made by the representative
of the European Communities and a so strongly urged other countries to which Article 70.8 applied
to submit notifications as soon as possible. He expressed doubts, though, as to the comments made
by the European Communities in relation to their second category of laws and regulations.

67. The representative of Japan emphasized the importance of Article 65.5 from a monitoring
perspective and expressed support for the points made by the European Communities and the United
States. He aso supported these delegations on the issue of Article 70.8 and added that attempts by
his Government to acquire information through diplomatic channels asto how the countries concerned
had implemented that provision had not been fruitful.

68. The representative of Switzerland supported the views expressed by the representatives of
the European Communities and the United States concerning Article 65.5. He expressed concern
regarding the limited number of notifications received so far under Article 70.8. He was pleased,
however, that two notifications had been received.

69. The representative of Canada said that the modalities for any notifications pursuant to
Article 65.5 had first to be clarified and that, therefore, Article 65.5 should be included as a priority
item in the informa discussions.

70. The representative of India preferred to reflect on the matter and come back to it during the
informal consultations.

71. The representative of Paraguay said the he had no difficulties in notifying any amendments
to the legislation of his country and that in fact the collection of lawsin WIPO could be consulted
in this respect, since modifications to the legislation of his country were aways communicated
automaticaly to WIPO.

72. The Chairman proposed that Article 65.5 would be the subject of informal consultations and
that the Council revert to the matter at alater stage. As to the second suggestion of the European
Communities, relating to the situation where a country had amended its legislation to bring its laws
and regulations into conformity with the provisions of the TRIPS Agreement in advance of its obligations
to do so, he suggested that information concerning such legislation would be submitted to the TRIPS
Council on a best endeavours basis. As regards Article 70.8, he proposed that the TRIPS Council
urge those Members to whom Article 70.8 applied to notify the relevant legislation prior to the next
meeting of the TRIPS Council and that the Council revert to the matter at the next meeting.

73. The Council so agreed.

74. The representative of Egypt said that there should be no decision that would add or lessen
any obligations under Article 65.5.

75. The Chairman noted that no decision had been taken in respect of Article 65.5 other than to
have informal consultations.



IP/IC/M/1
Page 15

D. Organizational Matters and Work Programme

76. The Chairman invited delegationsto consider which other items should be addressed thisyear
and how the TRIPS Council should proceed in this respect.

77. The representetive of the European Communities had two comments with respect to the activities
of the TRIPS Council, in particular, itsresponsibilitiesfor monitoring the operation of the Agreement.
The first comment concerned the question of patent applications under Article 70.8. Emphasizing
the great importance his delegation attached to operationally relevant procedures under Article 70.8
and 70.9in all countriesthat should have introduced such procedureswith effect from 1 January 1995,
he proposed that the implementation of these provisions be put on the agenda of the next meeting of
the TRIPS Council. In this context, it would be helpful to have available prior to the next meeting,
in addition to the notifications already received, the relevant legislation of al participants concerned
relating to these provisions so as to permit examination at that meeting. Apart from discussing this
matter in the TRIPS Council, his delegation remained, of course, fully open to pursuing related questions
on a bilateral basis, if countriesin question so wished. His second comment related to Article 23.4
of the Agreement concerning the establishment of amultilateral system of notification and registration
for geographical indications, which was a matter that had been discussed at great length during the
negotiations on TRIPS and which his del egation wished to address at an early opportunity inthe TRIPS
Council, preferably at the Council's next meeting.

78. The representative of Eqypt said that the highest priority should be attached to the issue of
technical cooperation. In thisregard, her delegation believed that the TRIPS Council might play a
rélein the context of Article 67 of the Agreement by reviewing, starting this year, technica and financid
cooper ation and assistanceprovided by devel oped countriesin favour of devel oping and | east-devel oped
countries with a view to assisting them in the implementation of the Agreement. It would be useful
if periodicaly adequate information would be provided to and examined by the Council with aview
to identifying areas where additional efforts might be necessary to respond to the needs of developing
and least-devel oped countries.

79. The representative of Canada, referring to the issue of non-violation nullification or impairment
in the TRIPS context, said that her delegation attached considerable importance to the inclusion of
this matter in the work programme of the TRIPS Council. While recognizing the time available for
a review and further consultations on this question, she stressed that the issues concerned were
conceptually difficult and had not been taken up in substance in any previous discussions, including
the TRIPS negotiations. The discussion of these issues should not be delayed too much, so asto leave
an adequate period to complete examination of the matter, as called for in Article 64 of the TRIPS
Agreement. She suggested that the Council include the matter in its work programme with a view
to, at least, setting a work plan this year on how to deal with it.

80. Therepresentative of Koreareferred to Article68 of the Agreement, inparticular the Council's
task of monitoring the operation of the Agreement, and said that the basic and necessary information
for monitoring Members' compliance with their obligations under the Agreement would be the laws
and regulations notified. Considering the volume of this information, his delegation would suggest
that, this year, a checklist or questionnaire be prepared as well as a monitoring schedule for the
submission of responses based on the entry into force of the substantive obligations under the TRIPS
Agreement. A working group might be established to prepare such a checklist or questionnaire and
examine the responses received from Members. An additional advantage of such a system would
be that the responses could be distributed to the Members instead of the laws and regulations themselves.

81. The representative of the United States agreed with the first comment by the European
Communities, that Article 70.8 should be kept on the agenda and should be an important topic for



IP/IC/M/1
Page 16

the next meeting of the TRIPS Council. He expressed disagreement, however, with the Canadian
delegation and believed that it was premature to begin considering questions of non-violation dispute
settlement cases. The Council had five yearsfor the examination of this matter and this year aready
had many other important issues to turn its attention to.

82. Therepresentative of India associated himself with the suggestion by Egypt on Article 67 and
also endorsed the views expressed by the Canadian delegation.

83. The representative of Hong Kong was of the view that, at this stage, the Council should
concentrateits efforts on getting the business going and should, consequently, focus on the monitoring
function under Article 68, in particular in respect of Article 70.8 and 70.9. He aso supported the
Egyptian suggestion to consider theimplementation of Article67. Theissues of non-violation disputes
and anotification and registration system for geographical indicationshad astrong negotiating element:
discussion on these matters had, therefore, better be reserved for later.

84. The representative of New Zealand said that in her delegation's view the early work of the
Council should include the implementation of Article 68 of the Agreement, i.e. arrangements for
monitoring the operation of the Agreement and consideration of what assistance the Council might
provide in the context of dispute settlement. Other priorities for future work were, in order, the
implementation of Articles 23.4, 64.3, 69 and 67 and 66.2.

85. The representative of Egypt said that it would not be necessary to take up the issue of non-
violation disputes until the third year after entry into force of the Agreement.

86. The representative of Japan agreed with Hong Kong that consideration this year of the issues
of non-violation disputes and geographical indications would be premature.

87. The representative of Switzerland believed that it was not at all premature to consider
Article 23.4 of the Agreement. The establishment of a notification and registration system for
geographical indications should be one of the priorities for the Council.

88. In conclusion, the Chairman noted that some of the points put forward would seem to be more
readily agreeable as items for awork programme than others. He proposed to take this agendaitem
up in the informal consultations he would be holding.

89. The Council so agreed.

E. Activities in other International Fora Reevant to the TRIPS Agreement

90. The Chairman referred to document 1P/C/W/1 and Corrigendum 1 concerning draft model
legidation under consideration in the World Customs Organization aimed at assisting countriesin giving
effect to their obligations on border enforcement under the TRIPS Agreement and opened the floor
to delegations wishing to comment on this or other matters relating to relevant activities of other
international fora.

91. The representative of the United States was concerned that the World Customs Organization
wason arather fast track. While all delegations had the opportunity to consult with their own customs
authorities on this, he was concerned that model legislation interpreting one aspect of the TRIPS
Agreement was about to be adopted and that there might not be much left to discuss in the TRIPS
Council inrelation to document 1P/C/W/1 if themodel |egislation were adopted by the World Customs
Organization in June of this year, as scheduled.



IP/IC/M/1
Page 17

92. The Chairman proposed to take up thisitem in theinformal consultations he would be holding
and to convey to the Chairman of the Genera Council the desire of the TRIPS Council to invite the
Secretariat of the World Customs Organization to be represented in an observer capacity at the next
meeting of the TRIPS Council.

93. The Council so agreed.

F. Other Business

94, The Chairman proposed that the Council hold its next meeting on 24 May 1995 and that, in
the meantime, hewould hold informa consultations on the various matters which had been discussed.

95. The Council so agreed.

96. The Chairman then suggested that the Council might have an additional meeting before the
summer break if necessary, for which he suggested some time in the week of 10 July 1995, and one
or two meetings in the autumn period according to the needs of the Council, for which he suggested,
on atentative basis, some time in the weeks of 9 October and 20 November.

97. The Council took note of these suggestions.





